AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

OF

REAVIS HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 220

AND

THE DISTRICT 220 SUPPORT STAFF COUNCIL,
LOCAL 943, AFT/AFL-CIO

2022-2026

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I	RECOGNITION	
1.1	Recognition	
1.2	Probationary Employees	
1.3	Temporary Employees	
1.4	Complete Understanding and Amendment	1-2
1.5	Reservation of Management Rights	
1.6	Exclusive Representation Rights	
1.7	Seniority	2
ARTICLE II	NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE	3
2.1	Scope	
2.2	Authority to Negotiate	3
2.3	Negotiations Procedure	
ARTICLE III	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	А
3.1	Access	4
3.2	Definition	4
3.3	Procedure	Δ
A.	First Stage	4
В.	Second Stage	4-5
C.	Third Stage	5
D.	Fourth Stage	
E.	Fifth Stage	
ARTICLE IV	EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE AND TERMINATION PROCEDURES	6
4.1	Records	
4.2	Records Termination of Employment for Cause	6
4.3	Termination for Reduction-In Force	6
4.4	Discipline Procedures	
ARTICLE V	EMPLOYEE RIGHTS	8
5.1	Right of Membership	
5.2	Union Representatives	
5.3	Right of Representation	
5.4	Right to Review Personnel File	
5.5	Notices and Meetings (A & B)	
5.6	Dues Deduction	
5.7	Channel of Communication	9
5.8	Notice of Vacant Positions	9
5.9	Transfer	10

•		
•		
A FORMA CHARACTER AND	LEAVES	11
ARTICLE VI	Sick Leave	
6.1		
6.2	Personal/Business Leave	
6.3	Maternity/Paternity Leave	
6.4	Jury Duty	
6.5	Leave of Absence - Personal	
Α.	Purpose	12
В.	Application Procedure	
C.	Insurance Availability	
D.	Medical Substantiation	12
Ε.	Notice of Intent to Return	
6.6	Professional Leave/Development	13
6.7	Bereavement Leave	13
ARTICLE VII	WORKING CONDITIONS	14
7.1	WORKING CONDITIONS Labor-Management Meetings	14
7.1	Work Week, Overtime/Compensatory Time (A, B, & C)	
7.3	Workday (A, B, C, & D)	
7.3 7.4	Holidays	16
	Vacation(A,B,C, &D)	
7.5	vacation(A,B,C, &B)	10-1/
ARTICLE VIII	WAGES AND FRINGE BENEFITS	18
8.1	Salary	18
8.2	Special Certification	
8.3	Longevity	18
8.4	Insurance Benefits	18
8.4	Hospital/Medical Coverage	18
ARTICLE IX	RETIREMENT	19
9.1	Retirement	
ARTICLE X	EFFECT OF AGREEMENT	20
10.1	Duration	20
10.2	No Strike Provision	20
10.3	Severability Provision	20
10.4	Complete Understanding	
10.5	Execution	· ·
APPENDIX A -	SALARY SCHEDULE	21
HI BINDIA AT	SILIMI SCHEDULE	
ADDENDIV B	IOR DESCRIPTION	22

ARTICLE I RECOGNITION

1.1 Recognition

The Board of Education of Reavis High School District 220 of Cook County, Illinois, hereinafter referred to as the "Board," hereby recognizes the District 220 Support Staff Council, Local 943, American Federation of Teachers, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as the "Union," as the sole and exclusive bargaining representative for all regularly employed full-time, twelve (12) month support staff employees.

Excluded from the unit are the secretary to each the Superintendent, Principal, and all other employees classified as confidential, supervisory or managerial. Also, no individual who is in his/her probationary period is represented by this Agreement.

As used hereafter in this Agreement, the term "employee" shall refer to a member of the bargaining unit as defined in this Section 1.1, except as specifically stated otherwise.

1.2 Probationary Employees

- A. A newly hired employee shall be considered to be a probationary employee for the first six (6) months of his/her employment, and within the (six (6) months) may be discharged at any time without advance notice, compensation or assigning any reason whatsoever.
- B. An individual who is in his/her probationary period, which commences upon the initial date of hire as a full-time employee, shall be ineligible for certain benefits provided by this Agreement as indicated in the Agreement. During the six (6) months probationary period, the employee may be discharged by the employer without the employee having recourse to the Grievance Procedure.
- C. All bargaining unit members shall be provided with a job description (see Appendix) upon hire, a copy of which will be kept in the personnel file.

1.3 Temporary Employees

The parties agree that it may be necessary for the Board to utilize temporary employees. Employees shall be considered temporary for a period of ninety (90) continuous days at the same position. After the period of ninety (90) continuous days of employment at the same position, the employee shall enter into the probationary status and shall be subject to the provisions of the Agreement. Payment for temporary employees shall be according to the rates established by this Agreement.

1.4 Complete Understanding and Amendment

This Agreement shall constitute the full and complete commitments between both parties. It supersedes and cancels all previous agreements, oral or written, or based on alleged past

practices between the Board and the Union. The terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement represent the full and complete understanding between the parties and may be modified only through written mutual consent of the parties. This Agreement may be altered, changed, added to or deleted from, or modified only through the voluntary mutual consent of the parties in written and signed amendment to this Agreement.

1.5 Reservation of Management Rights

It is expressly understood and agreed that all functions, rights, powers, or authority of the administration of the School District and the Board of Education which are not specifically limited by the express language of this Agreement are retained by the Board provided, however, that no such right shall be exercised so as to violate any of the specific provisions of this Agreement.

1.6 Exclusive Representation Rights

The Board agrees not to negotiate with any other employees' organization, or group of employees with regard to negotiable items as defined in this Agreement, unless otherwise provided for in this Agreement or unless mutually agreed to by the parties during the term of this Agreement.

1.7 Seniority

Seniority shall be defined as the length of continuous service to District 220. Effective July 12, 2011, all support staff members hired prior to July 1, 2011, shall retain seniority if hired into an exempt position. Any new member hired after July 1, 2011, who becomes exempt will retain their years of service upon reentry to the unit, however for purposes of seniority, exempt years will not be included. Example: if a member is in the unit for five (5) years and exempt for two (2), the member would reenter the unit with five (5) years on the seniority list.

ARTICLE II NEGOTIATIONS PROCEDURE

2.1 Scope

The parties agree that their duly designated representatives shall negotiate in good faith. Each party shall select its own representatives. The Union and Board agree to negotiate with respect to salaries, fringe benefits, negotiation and grievance procedures, and other terms and conditions of employment which may be contained in this Agreement. Good faith is defined as the willingness of both parties to meet, discuss the issues, and make proposals and counter proposals in an effort to reach agreement. It does not imply acquiescence to either party's demands either in whole or in part.

2.2 Authority to Negotiate

Both parties agree that it is their mutual responsibility to confer upon their respective representatives the necessary power and authority to make proposals, consider proposals, make counter proposals, and to seek tentative agreements. Tentative agreements shall be reduced to writing and initialed as appropriate at each meeting, and when all items are completed, the entire contract shall be submitted to the Union for ratification and the Board for adoption.

2.3 Negotiations Procedure

Negotiations shall begin no earlier than May 1st but no later than June 1st in the year this Agreement terminates. When either party executes written notification to the other party prior to April 1st of the year the contract terminates that it wishes to renegotiate the Agreement, the Board shall meet with the Union no earlier than May 1st to receive the Union's proposal, and negotiations will continue in an effort to reach an agreement. The Agreement may be continued by mutual consent.

All items proposed for negotiations shall be presented in writing by the Union at the first meeting. At the first meeting, the parties shall also discuss and agree to ground rules, including number and name of participants and alternates and time limits for bargaining sessions. The Board shall present in writing its counter proposals within forty-five (45) calendar days of the date on which the Board received the Union's package. If agreement is not reached twenty (20) calendar days before the commencement of the new school year, either party may declare to the other in writing that an impasse exists and call for mediation.

It is agreed that the parties will jointly request the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) if either party to this Agreement declares an impasse. Should FMCS be unavailable, the parties shall immediately commence discussion as to a replacement. In the event that both parties cannot agree upon a replacement, the Illinois Educational Labor Relations Board shall be notified. Each party shall pay for its costs associated with mediation.

ARTICLE III GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

3.1 Access

Only non-probationary employees shall have access to the Grievance Procedure. No grievance shall be allowed to be filed if it occurs during the probationary period.

3.2 Definition

A grievance shall mean a complaint that there has been an alleged violation, or misapplication of any of the specific provisions of this Agreement. A grievance must be filed at the first stage within twenty (20) working days from the time of the original occurrence of the event complained of, or within twenty (20) working days from the date upon which the grievant or the Union knew or should have known of the occurrence of the event giving rise to the grievance, and further, every non-probationary employee covered by this Agreement shall have the right to present grievances in accordance with the following procedures. The written information contained in the filed grievance shall include: 1) a description of the specific grounds of the grievance, including names, dates and places necessary for a complete understanding of the grievance; 2) a listing of the provisions of this Agreement which are alleged to have been violated, or misapplied; 3) a listing of specific actions requested of the administration which will remedy the grievance.

3.3 Procedure

Any non-probationary employee may at any time present grievances to the administration without the intervention of the Union, provided that the Union has been given the opportunity to be present at all meetings.

The failure of a non-probationary employee or the Union to act within the time limits will act as a bar to any further appeal, and an administrator's failure to render a decision or meet within the time limits set forth shall permit the non-probationary employee or Union to proceed to the next step. Time limits may be extended only by mutual agreement. Hearings and conferences held under this procedure shall be conducted by mutual agreement.

Before a grievance is filed, a sincere attempt should be made to resolve any difference informally between the aggrieved and the appropriate administrator or whoever the grievance is against.

By mutual agreement, any step of the grievance procedure may be bypassed.

A. First Stage

An aggrieved employee and/or the Union may file a formal grievance under this Article by timely submitting a written complaint with the Superintendent or designee setting forth the action being grieved, the provision(s) of the Agreement allegedly violated, and the requested remedy. A meeting with the Superintendent or designee will take place within ten (10) working days of the receipt of the written grievance. The Superintendent or designee shall make a decision on the grievance and communicate it in writing, within ten (10) working days after the meeting, to the employee and Union.

B. Second Stage

If the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved at the first stage, the aggrieved employee and/or the Union may file within ten (10) working days of the receipt of the Superintendent or

designee's written decision an appeal to the Assistant Superintendent. Within ten (10) working days after an appeal is received, the Assistant Superintendent and the aggrieved and his/her Union representatives shall meet to resolve the grievance. The Assistant Superintendent shall file a written decision with the employee, Union and the Superintendent within ten (10) working days of the second stage meeting.

C. Third Stage

In the event a grievance has not been satisfactorily resolved at the second stage, the aggrieved employee and/or the Union may file within ten (10) working days of the receipt of the Assistant Superintendent written decision or answer a letter to the Superintendent or designeerequesting a meeting.

Within ten (10) working days after such written grievance is received by the Superintendent or designee, the aggrieved, the representative of the aggrieved as desired and the Assistant Superintendent, the Superintendent or designee, not here or hereafter to exceed four (4) members, will meet to resolve the grievance. The Superintendent or designee will file an answer within ten (10) working days of the third stage grievance meeting and communicate it in writing to the employee, Union representative, and the Assistant Superintendent.

D. Fourth Stage

In the event a grievance has not been satisfactorily resolved at the third stage, the aggrieved employee and/or the Union may file, within ten (10) working days of the receipt of the Superintendent's written decision or answer, the grievance with the Board of Education to be considered in as timely a fashion as the schedule of Board meetings and the agendas therefore permit. The aggrieved and the grievance committee may present a written brief to the Board and Superintendent and may request an oral hearing on the grievance, which will be granted at the discretion of the Board.

E. Fifth Stage

If the grievance is not resolved satisfactorily to the Union after the fourth stage, there shall be a fifth step of impartial arbitration. The Union will submit in writing, within thirty (30) working days of the Board's decision, that the Union is requesting a list of arbitrators from the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. The decision of the arbitrator, if made in accordance with his jurisdiction and authority under this Agreement, will be accepted as final by the parties and both will abide by it.

All expenses incurred shall be shared equally by the Board and Union. It is understood that such expenses will be limited to the arbitrator's fee. Any legal expenses incurred should be paid for by the party engaging the legal counsel.

Insofar as such arbitration is limited solely and simply to interpretation and implementation of the terms of this contract, both parties agree to abide by the results of the findings of the arbitrator. The arbitrator shall not have the power to add to, subtract from, alter, or modify in any way, any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement. All records related to a grievance shall be filed separately from the personnel files of an employee during the time of grievance.

ARTICLE IV EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE AND TERMINATION PROCEDURES

4.1 Records

Falsification of records or application forms is grounds for immediate dismissal.

4.2 Termination of Employment for Cause

- A. The employment of an employee may be terminated for cause upon action of the Board of Education.
- B. Reason(s) for termination of employment for cause shall be presented to the Board of Education in writing and a copy of such reason(s) shall be supplied to the employee concerned.
- C. Termination of employment for cause after one year unless the probationary period has been extended, shall be accompanied by at least two (2) weeks' notice, except in cases in which the Board of Education concludes that the continued presence of the employee on the premises will be detrimental to the best interests of the District, in which case employment may be terminated immediately upon notice, along with two (2) weeks' pay in lieu thereof, providing, however, that if such employment is terminated by reason of gross misconduct, no severance pay shall be granted. At the termination of employment of any employee falling under the provisions of Article 7.5, for any reason, the employee shall receive a pro-rata share of vacation pay for all unused vacation days.

4.3 Termination for Reduction-In Force

Employees who are terminated because of financial reductions or the elimination of positions shall be reduced in accordance with their seniority and be notified of such termination at least forty-five (45) days prior to the termination date.

Any employee who is laid-off shall be entitled to recall prior to the employment of non-District personnel for any vacant position in the classification and for which position he/she is qualified. Such recall right shall last until September 1st of the year following the layoff.

Individuals on layoff, with the consent of the carrier, will be kept on the health insurance plan for eighteen (18) months from the start of the layoff. Such individuals shall be required to make monthly premium contributions to the District office one month in advance.

4.4 Discipline Procedures

It shall be the responsibility of the appropriate administrator or immediate supervisor to bring to the attention of the employee deficiencies in said employee's work program or performance of assigned work and, in writing, make a record of such conference. One copy of said record shall be provided to said employee.

For non-probationary employees, disciplinary action will be progressive and, except for gross misconduct as stipulated in Article 4.2-C., in accordance with the following schedule. The sequence and necessity for the following steps will be determined by the Superintendent depending upon the circumstances of each case.

- I. Oral Warning
- 2. Written Warning
- 3. One (1) to Five (5) Day Suspension (without pay)
- 4. Discharge

ARTICLE V EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

5.1 Right of Membership

Employees shall have the right to organize and join the Union and to participate in negotiations with the Board or its designee through representatives of their own choosing. It is also agreed employees have the right to not join the Union. The Board shall not discriminate against any employee with respect to hours, wages, or terms and conditions of employment for reason of membership or non-membership in the Union, participating in negotiations with the Board, or the institution of any grievance, complaint or proceeding under this Agreement.

5.2 Union Representatives

The Board recognizes the right of the Union to select from its employees who are members of the Union, a steward or committee to handle Union business, such as the investigation of grievances, meeting with management, transmittal of messages, and such other duties as may be delegated to them from time to time by the Union. The name of such steward(s) and committee members shall be furnished to the Board in writing and any change shall be reported in writing. The representative of the Union, for Union business, shall have admission at reasonable times to the buildings covered by this Agreement after first checking in with the District Superintendent or his/her representative. Union business and/or the investigation of grievances shall be conducted on the employee's time, unless mutually agreed to the contrary.

5.3 Right of Representation

When an employee is required to appear before the Board and/or the Superintendent concerning any matter which could adversely affect the employee's employment status, the employee shall be entitled to have a Union representative of his/her choice present. Further, when an employee is required to appear before the Board, the employee shall be advised in writing at least forty-eight (48) hours before that scheduled meeting with the Board of the reason(s) for the requirement.

5.4 Right to Review Personnel File

A master file of all materials related to an employee shall exist at the Business Office. Each employee upon reasonable notice shall have the right to review the contents of said employee's personnel file, with the exception of pre-employment confidential materials, and to attach and place therein written reactions to any of its contents. The employee may not remove any materials from said file. The Superintendent or designee shall be present during the review. An employee may have copies prepared at his/her expense.

5.5 Notices and Meetings

- A. The Union will be allowed bulletin board privileges set aside for employees.
- B. Meetings on employee time may be held on school property with the approval of the Superintendent or designee. Employees are not to work on union affairs during work hours except as specified in this Agreement.

5.6 Dues Deduction

- A. In with applicable law, the Board will deduct from the pay of members of the bargaining unit, from whom it receives written authorization, the required amount of Union dues and contributions as directed by the Union. The dues payments and the list of members from whose pay the dues have been deducted, along with the amount deducted from each, shall be forwarded to the Union treasurer no later than thirty (30) days after such deductions were made.
- B. The Employer shall honor employees' individually authorized deduction forms and shall make such deductions in the amounts certified by the Union for union dues, assessments, or fees. Dues revocations are processed by the union in accordance with the terms agreed to between the union and member. In the event that an employee revokes his/her dues in accordance with the terms in which they authorized the dues deductions, the Union will notify the employer within 5 days of the close of the revocations window. Disputes related to an individual member's authorization and revocation of dues deduction are not subject to the grievance procedure.
- C. The Board shall deduct said annual union contributions from such employee's earnings in twenty (20) bi-weekly installments over the course of the school year, each in approximately uniform amounts equal to the annual charge divided by twenty (20).
- D. The Board shall commence such deduction beginning with the first payroll period through the 20th payroll period of each school year. Employees who authorize such deductions after the start of the school year shall only have deducted from the earnings the installments remaining generally during the remainder of the school year, commencing with the first payroll period that begins on or after the receipt of said written authorizations.
- E. Indemnify and Hold Harmless: The Union shall indemnify and hold harmless the Board of Educations, its members, officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all claims demands, actions, complaints, suits, or other forms of liability including the costs of defense thereof that shall arise out of complying with the above provisions of this article, or reliance on any list, notice, certification, affidavit or reassignment furnished under any such provisions.

5.7 Channel of Communication

Communication by Support Staff on all work-related matters to the Board of Education shall always be through the Superintendent.

5.8 Notice of Vacant Positions

The Union president will be provided notices of all vacancies within the bargaining unit.

5.9 Transfer

A non-probationary member may apply for transfer to another position where a vacancy exists and for which he/she is qualified. The Administration will consider all internal applicants for the vacant position before considering outside applicants or filling the position by involuntary transfer. If the request for transfer is denied, the employee may request a meeting to discuss the reasons for denial of the requested transfer. The employee may not revoke his/her request for transfer once it is granted. A notice of involuntary transfer from one assignment to another shall be given to the bargaining unit member as soon as possible. The Board will endeavor to notify the affected staff member fifteen (15) business days prior to the transfer.

ARTICLE VI <u>LEAVES</u>

6.1 Sick Leave

Sick leave shall be interpreted to mean personal illness, quarantine at home, or serious illness or death in the immediate family or in the household. Immediate family, for the purposes of illness, shall be interpreted to mean parents, spouse, and children, brothers, sisters, grandparents, grandchildren, parents-in-law, brothers-in-law, sisters-in-law and legal guardians.

A. Effective with the 2022-2023 school year, each member shall be entitled to a normal annual allotment of sick leave days with full pay per school year based on the following schedule, in which the support staff must meet both the District years of service and minimum accumulated sick leave threshold, which is determined as of June 30 of the prior school year for eligibility for the normal annual allotment for the current school year. Sick leave shall be granted upon the beginning of employment and each July 1st thereafter. Sick leave accumulated in one (1) year may be carried over to succeeding years to a maximum of two hundred forty (240) days.

Years of District Service	Normal Annual Allotment	Minimum Threshold Eligibility
0-9 years	13 days	
10-19 years	15 days	45 days
20+ years	17 days	100 days

- **B.** Employees should report all illness or other cause for absence from work to his/her supervisor as soon as they are aware that they will be absent from school. If at all possible, this should be done on the day prior to the absence from school. The employee may be required to provide his/her supervisor with satisfactory proof ofillness from a licensed medical doctor in order to receive sick leave pay. Such a requirement shall not be implemented for frivolous reasons.
- C. Absence for part of a day for reasons in accordance with the sick leave provisions shall be charged against accrued sick leave in an amount not less than one (1) hour. Holidays and other regular days off shall not be charged against sick leave.
- **D.** When a support staff member is out on a leave for more than three (3) weeks, the administration will find a temporary employee, or pay the union employee required to fill the position an additional \$2.00 per hour for only that time in the vacant position.

6.2 Personal/Business Leave

Each employee shall be entitled each year during his/her regular employment to be absent without loss of pay or other benefits for three (3) days for the purpose of personal/business, or an emergency which cannot be dealt with during off hours. This day shall not be used to extend any holiday or vacation period and shall not be accumulative as personal leave. Any unused day shall be credited to the employee's regular accumulated sick leave.

Twenty-four (24) hours advance notice shall be given to the supervisor, except in an emergency.

6.3 Maternity/Paternity Leave

Absence due to pregnancy-related disability shall be treated as sick leave. The Board may grant a request by a non-probationary employee for an uncompensated maternity/paternity leave of absence, subject to the general conditions for personal leave of absence set forth in Section 6.5 below. The beginning and termination dates of the uncompensated leave shall be determined by the employee and her/his immediate supervisor. Any employee who returns from maternity/paternity leave shall be reinstated to her/his former position or its equivalent. The maximum length of maternity/paternity leave shall be one complete calendar year.

6.4 Jury Duty

The Board shall pay the regular salary to employees called for jury duty but shall deduct any compensation received for such duty with the exception of compensation received for travel allowance.

6.5 Leave of Absence - Personal

- A. Purpose Upon request of a non-probationary employee, the Board may grant an unpaid leave of absence for up to one (1) year. Employees on an unpaid leave shall neither accrue nor lose seniority nor shall they advance on the pay schedule.
- B. . Application Procedure Applications are to be submitted to the Superintendent or designee thirty (30) days prior to the date on which the leave is to begin or by June 1 if the leave is for the next school year. An emergency request for an unpaid leave of absence may be submitted with as much advance notice as possible under the circumstances. The written application shall indicate the requested starting and ending dates of the leave.
- C. Insurance Availability With the approval of the carrier, the employee will be given the opportunity to continue insurance coverage as set forth in this Agreement during the leave of absence but will be required to pay all premiums connected with this coverage. All premiums must be paid in advance of the month due. When the leave of absence is for verifiable medical reasons, the Board will pay the monthly single coverage insurance premium for a maximum of twelve (12) months with the following conditions:
 - I. All accumulated sick days and vacation days must be used prior to the leave of absence.
 - 2. Employees will become vested in this plan at the rate of one month for each year of service.
- D. Medical Substantiation -Any request for a leave based upon personal medical reasons shall be accompanied by a physician's statement indicating the nature, anticipated extent, and duration of medical disability. Evidence from a qualified physician indicating the employee's ability to perform all assigned duties shall be submitted at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the return of any employee on an unpaid leave for personal medical reasons.
- E. Notice of Intent to Return Any employee granted an unpaid leave of eight (8) calendar months or more, as a condition thereof, shall advise the Superintendent or designee in writing no later than two (2) months prior to the termination of such leave

that he/she intends to return to employment. Failure to advise the Superintendent or designee of intent to return as required by this Section shall be treated as an election not to return to employment and as a resignation from the District.

6.6 Professional Leave/Development

- A. Employees may be released from their regular duties to attend professional meetings of their professional organization. Expenses for such conferences will be paid by the employee or the Union.
- B. In-Service Day: The Board shall conduct an in-service workshop for the entire Support Staff at least once a year. At the conclusion of each school year, Support Staff will be surveyed regarding their needs for professional in-service. In-service offerings will be based on the collaborated needs indicated on the surveys collected, as well as administrative input and suggestions.
- C. Bargaining unit members will be given the opportunity to attend any such classes and in-service sessions for the purpose of strengthening the support staff in understanding their roles in business practices, use of technological equipment, current health issues and environmental concerns. Bargaining unit members attending such classes, workshops, and/or in-service programs as approved by the Administration will be released from regular duties with no loss of pay and will be compensated for any approved expenses. Employees wishing to participate in such seminars will submit to their supervisor a request, in writing, outlining the time necessary and any incidental expenses. Incidental expenses shall include and be covered to the following maximums: \$50 per day for meals, \$90 per night for hotels, and IRS rate of reimbursement for mileage.

6.7 Bereavement Leave

Three (3) days leave is permitted upon the death of anyone in the immediate family. "Immediate family" shall include parents, spouse, and brothers, sisters, children, grandparents, grandchildren, parents-in-law, brothers-in-law, sisters-in-law, legal guardians and grandparent's in-law. One-day leave is permitted upon the death of any other relative.

ARTICLE VII WORKING CONDITIONS

7.1 Labor-Management Meetings

Tue Superintendent or designee shall, if the need arises, meet with the Union president and/or the chief steward at mutually agreeable times during the contract year to discuss the operation of this Agreement. Items to be discussed shall be indicated by the moving party.

7.2 Work Week, Overtime/Compensatory Time

- A. The normal work week shall be five (5) consecutive workdays as specified in this Article, Monday through Friday, inclusively.
- B. Employees shall receive one and one-half (1-1/2) times their hourly rate for work that exceeds forty (40) hours in a week. All overtime performed must have prior approval of the Superintendent. Tue only exception to this policy is where, in the opinion of a supervisory employee, overtime is necessary, and it is not possible to obtain prior approval; in such case, the supervisor may approve the overtime. A form is provided for overtime, which must be approved before payment is made.
 - 1. Overtime shall be distributed on a rotating basis. Overtime shall be offered to the first person within a department, by seniority, and to each succeeding person until any overtime need is fulfilled. The next person on the seniority list will be the first person approached when the need for overtime next occurs.
 - 2. To begin the rotation, each year, concurrent with the start of the school year, the bargaining unit member with the most seniority within the department in which overtime is needed, will be offered the first opportunity for overtimework. The Board and the bargaining unit will jointly develop a procedure for this rotation.
- C. Full-time employees who are subject to the time keeping provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act (nonexempt employees) and are included in the Board-Union Agreement covering Educational Support Personnel shall be entitled to earn compensatory time off in lieu of overtime with the approval of their immediate supervisor and Superintendent or designee. However, the use of compensatory time off in lieu of overtime pay compensation must be with the employee's agreement.

The maximum compensatory time which may be accrued by any employee shall be 40 hours, accumulated at the rate of one and one-half hours for each hour of overtime worked. An employee who has accrued the maximum number of compensatory hours shall be paid overtime compensation for any additional overtime hours worked.

An employee shall be required to use accrued compensatory time by the end of the fiscal year in which it is earned so long as the request to do so will not unduly disrupt the operations of the District. In the event a reasonable request for use of compensatory time is refused twice for such reason, the employee may carry those hours into the next fiscal year.

Each request to use accrued compensatory time shall first be approved by the employee's immediate supervisor and then by the Superintendent or designee. Accrued compensatory time which has not been used by the end of the fiscal year in which it is earned shall be converted to overtime and calculated at the rate of pay received by the employee during that fiscal year.

"Compensatory time" and "compensatory time off' are defined as hours when an employee is not working, and which are paid for at the employee's rate of pay. These hours are not to be counted as hours worked in the week in which they are used.

No overtime, whether to be paid or earned as compensatory time off, shall be permitted to be accrued unless expressly authorized and approved by the employee's immediate supervisor and the Superintendent or designee. Any such overtime requestmust be submitted on the District's overtime request form prior to the time being earned with an indication of whether the overtime has to be paid or credited toward accrued compensatory time. The Business Office shall notify all employees by May

1 as to the number of hours of compensatory time accumulated so that employees may schedule its use prior to July 1.

7.3 Workday

Workdays for classifications within this Agreement shall be defined below:

- A. The workday during the school year shall be no more than eight (8) hours and thirty (30) minutes, which includes a thirty-(30) minute duty-free, non-paid lunch period.
- B. There will be two (2) fifteen (15) minute break periods each day, as mutually agreed to by the supervisor and employee. The Union and Administration agree that breaks may not be used to shorten the contractual workday by arriving late or leaving early.
- C. Early release from the above-designated workday may be authorized only at the sole and exclusive discretion of the Superintendent.
- D. Summer Schedule: The summer term shall begin at the discretion of the Superintendent or designee, but no later than the second Monday in June. This term shall be from 7:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Thursday, with the campus being closed on eight (8) consecutive Fridays. The workday shall include a thirty (30)minute duty-free, non-paid lunch period. Employees may extend their lunch to forty- five (45) minutes by taking their one (1) paid break at the end of their thirty-minute lunch period. After the eight weeks of the Monday through Thursday schedule, the workday will return to normal hours of 7:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. A clean, air-conditioned area shall be provided for lunch and break for all employees during the summer.

7.4 Holidays

The following days shall be paid holidays for employees if the day falls within their normal work year.

Labor Day
Columbus Day
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving Day
Friday after Thanksgiving

Christmas Day New Year's Day Martin Luther King Jr.'s Birthday Presidents' Day/Lincoln's Birthday Casimir Pulaski's Birthday Spring Friday Holiday Memorial Day Juneteenth July 4th

When any of the above holidays falls on a weekend, the Friday preceding or the Monday following will be granted as a holiday, provided that school is not in session. Whenever any support staff employee is directed to work on a scheduled holiday, he/she shall receive the holiday pay in addition to straight time.

7.5 Vacation

Each full-time twelve (12) month employee shall be granted vacation time, with pay, as follows:

One (1) week upon hire

Two (2) weeks after twenty-four (24) months of service

Three (3) weeks after sixty (60) months of service

Four (4) weeks after one hundred and twenty (120) months of service

* Five (5) weeks after two hundred and forty (240) months of service

*Current employees who have attained a minimum of 120 months of service as of July 1, 2014, will be eligible for five weeks of vacation after 240 months of service. All other current and new employees will be entitled to a maximum of four weeks of vacation once said service has been achieved.

It was agreed, after an audit is complete, to develop language through a side letter that makes all members whole pertaining to vacation days from the time of hire.

New vacation allotments will be awarded on July 1st of each year. The cut-off date for determining vacation allowance will be July 1st.

The following regulations apply to all employees taking vacations:

- A. All vacations must be taken within 18 months from time of issuance.
- B. In case of conflict between two employees for the same date in which a settlement cannot be reached, the employee with the most seniority within the classification shall be accorded time preference.

C. If a holiday or any other day on which employees are not required to work falls in a paid vacation period, a compensatory day will be credited to the available vacation time.

At the discretion of the Superintendent or designee, an additional unpaid time off benefit shall be continued as in the past during the summer according to the needs of the District and determined by department and by seniority, as long as all accrued vacation time has been used.

ARTICLE VIII WAGES AND FRINGE BENEFITS

8.1 Salary

During the term of this Agreement, employees shall be paid in accordance with the salary schedules shown in Appendix A, which is incorporated herein. According to the authority granted by the Pension Reform Act of 1974, Section 414(h) (2) of the Internal Revenue Code and Public Act 81-5136, <u>Ill. Rev. Stat.</u> 1981, chap. 108-1/2, par. 7-173.2, the Board of Education agrees to pay out of the above-mentioned salary schedule four and one-half (4-1/2) percent of each employee's salary to the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) on behalf of each employee as a tax sheltered direct contribution. Should any of the above be declared improper by an IRS ruling or opinion or by a court of competent jurisdiction, that clause or portion thereof shall be deleted to the extent that it violates the ruling or opinion.

8.2 Special Certification

When a support staff member needs a special certification and secures said certification for the specific job responsibilities of the position, the District will pay that member a \$1,000 stipend per year. The District will cover all expenses for in-services and training that may be required to obtain/maintain said certification. This determination is reserved by the Superintendent.

8.3 Longevity

Each member shall receive a one-time longevity stipend at the following rates:

On his/her 10 th year anniversary date	\$500
On his/her 15 th year anniversary date	\$1000
On his/her 20 th year anniversary date	\$1500
On his/her 25 th year anniversary date	\$2000

This stipend will not be added to the member's annual salary and will not be compounded into their base salary moving forward.

8.4 Insurance Benefits

Hospital/Medical Coverage- Effective July 1, 2022, and for the duration of this contract, the District will pay the first 2% of any increase in the total monthly insurance premium cost. Any increase in premium cost in excess of 2% will be shared at a ratio of 50% employee contribution and 50% for District, again provided that at no time during the life of this Agreement will be employee's share exceed 20% of the total premium cost. Any premium cost exceeding 20% of the employee's total premium cost will be borne by the Board.

In an effort to contain premium costs, a support staff administration committee will be established to explore the possibilities of modifying benefit schedules and evaluating alternative carriers.

Prior to the annual renewal of the current insurance program, said committee will recommend either renewal or change of coverage and/or carrier. Such recommendation will be submitted to the Board for consideration.

ARTICLE IX RETIREMENT

9.1 Retirement Plan

A member must have at least ten (10) years of service to the District to qualify for this Retirement Plan.

Each member who qualifies for the Retirement Plan must give the Superintendent a letter of intent to retire by June 10th of the preceding year(s) they plan on retiring, with a minimum six (6) months' notice and a maximum four (4) year notice.

Once the member's letter to retire is approved by the School Board of Education, it becomes irrevocable.

Once the member's letter to retire is approved by the School Board of Education, the following will occur:

- The member will receive three-hundred dollars (\$300.00) for each year of service, up to a maximum of sixteen (16) years of service. This amount can be used to increase the member's salary to a maximum of six (6) percent a year for a maximum of four (4) years.
- The Board will pay 100% of a retiree's single coverage medical insurance premium, irrespective of age, for five (5) years and can receive an additional year of single insurance in exchange for their years of service stipend, minimally three thousand dollars (\$3,000.00) for a maximum of six (6) years or until the retiree reaches eligible Medicare age, whichever comes first.
- Any money not used for an increased salary percentage or additional insurance, will be paid to the member thirty (30) days after retirement.
- The member will receive the following salary increases for up to the last four (4) years of service to the District:

Year of Retirement Plan	Salary Increase
First Year	5% increase to previous year's salary
Second Year	5% increase to previous year's salary
Third Year	4.5% increase to previous year's salary
Fourth Year	4.5% increase to previous year's salary

Sick Time - Upon retirement, any sick day not submitted to IMRF shall be paid to the employee at a rate of eighty-five (\$85) dollars for each unused sick day up to a maximum of fifty-five (55) days.

Life Insurance - Each employee shall be provided with a group term life insurance policy of thirty-five thousand dollars (\$35,000.00), subject to any and all restrictions of the carrier. Upon retirement, each employee shall be provided with a life insurance policy of thirty-five thousand dollars (\$35,000.00), subject to District retirement rules and restrictions of the carrier.

ARTICLE X EFFECT OF AGREEMENT

10.1 Duration

This Agreement shall become effective at the date of execution and shall continue in effect until June 30, 2026.

10.2 No Strike Provision

The employees represented by the Union agree not to strike, or engage in, or support or encourage any concerted refusal to end full and complete services in the School District or to engage in or support any activity whatsoever which would disrupt in any manner the operation of the school.

10.3 Severability Provision

Should any article, section, or clause of this Agreement be declared illegal by a court of competent jurisdiction, then that part shall be deleted from this Agreement to the extent that it violates the law. The remaining articles, sections, and clauses shall remain in effect.

10.4 Complete Understanding

Any rights and privileges enjoyed by support staff under any provision of this Agreement shall be exercised subject to any legally required implementation of the Americans with Disabilities Act, or any other state or federal laws or regulations which this Board must legally observe. Employees shall be eligible for a Family and Medical Leave (FMLA) for a total of twelve (12) weeks in a twelve-month period as provided by and in accordance with the provisions of the Family Medical Leave Act and the policy of the district.

10.5 Execution

This Agreement is signed this 15th day of July 2022.

In witness whereof:

THE REAVIS DISTRICT
220 SUPPORT STAFF
COUNCIL, LOCAL 943,
AMERICAN FEDERATION OF
TEACHERS, AFL-CIO

THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF REAVIS HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 220, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

Alux Balandes
President

Mauraen Harnandes

President

Vice President

Secretary

Appendix A

Salary Scale

Starting Salaries for support staff employees will be the following:

	12 Month Salary	Hourly Rate
FY 23 Starting Salary:	\$41,500	\$20.96
FY 24 Starting Salary	\$41,915	\$21.17
FY 25 Starting Salary	\$42,334	\$21.38
FY 26 Starting Salary	\$42,757	\$21.59

The starting salary for the 2022-2023 fiscal year will increase from \$40,000 to \$41,500.

For the remainder of this Agreement, a 1.0% annual raise will be directly multiplied to support staff starting salary each year. (applicable for fiscal years 2022-2023 / 2023-2024 / 2024-2025 / 2025-2026)

Continuing Support Staff Employees

FY 22- Current members will receive a \$500 compounding bonus to the FY 22 support staff member's salary.

FY23- A flat \$3,000 annual raise will be added to the support staff member's previous year's salary

FY24- A 4.0% annual raise will be directly multiplied to the support staff member's previous year's salary

FY25- A 4.0% annual raise will be directly multiplied to the support staff member's previous year's salary

FY26- A 3.75% annual raise will be directly multiplied to the support staff member's previous year's salary

APPENDIX B

POSITION

SUPPORT STAFF- FULL TIME

OUALIFICATIONS:

Word processing, typing (60 words per minute), computer application skills, positive human relations skills, and strong organizational ability. Must be able to work additional hours when necessary. Alternatives to the above qualifications as the Board of Education may find appropriate.

DUTIES_AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

The individual is expected to perform the following duties and responsibilities:

- a. plans, organizes, schedules and completes routine assigned tasks:
- b. gives great attention to detail and accuracy;
- c. maintains a logical, retrievable filing system;
- d. exhibits positive human relations skills both in person and in telephone conversations with students, staff, and the general public;
- e. maintains confidentiality and discretion regarding student/staff information:
- f. expresses and develops new ideas and suggestions; maintains office continuity and takes responsibility for routine decisions in absence of immediate supervisor;
- g. meets the established office hours, schedules and district attendance policy;
- h. performs such other duties and assume other responsibilities as assigned by the immediate supervisor.

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT

GRIEVANCE SETTLEMENT

This Memorandum of Agreement is a settlement agreement for an involuntary transfer grievance filed on behalf of employee Jacqueline Moore (hereinafter the "MOA") is entered into between the Board of Education of Reavis Highschool District 220 (hereinafter "the Board") and the Reavis Support Staff Council #220 of Local 943, Illinois Federation of Teachers, for the Southwest Suburban Federation of Teachers, IFT-AFT Local 943 (hereinafter "the Union", collectively "the parties") as a result of the parties' side letter agreement concerning vacation day awards during negotiations for school years 2022-2023 through 2025-2026. The Board and Union agree as follows:

- 1. The parties agreed to develop a side letter during negotiations for the new 2022-2023/2025-2026 collective bargaining agreement (hereinafter "CBA") to award members vacation days upon employment and every July 1st thereafter. During discussion, it was determined that an audit must be conducted to ensure every support staff employee is made whole because of the structure of how vacation is awarded in the new CBA.
- 2. The parties reached an agreement pursuant to the results of the completed audit detailed in Appendix A to award vacation days to current support staff employees to make them whole.
- 3. The parties agree to waive Article VII Section 7.5 A- "All vacations must be taken within 18 months from time of issuance." for all vacation days awarded to employees through this MOA per Appendix A. The parties agree that all newly awarded vacation days from this MOA must be used by the expiration of the current CBA.

Dated this First day of February 2023. 2-01-2023

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement by their duly authorized representatives.

For the Board of Education School District 220 For the Reavis 220 Support Staff IFT-AFT Local 943

President

x alue Balandis
President